ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 6, 2014
8:10 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis

Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representative Charisse MIlett

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 127

"An Act clarifying that the Al aska Bar Association is an agency
for purposes of investigations by the onbudsnman; relating to
conpensati on of the onbudsman and to enploynent of staff by the
onmbudsman under personal service contracts; providing that
certain records of comunications between the onbudsman and an
agency are not public records; relating to disclosure by an
agency to the onbudsman of communications subject to attorney-
client and attorney work-product privileges; relating to
informal and formal reports of opinions and recomendations
issued by the onbudsman; relating to the privilege of the
onbudsman not to testify and creating a privilege under which
the onmbudsman is not required to disclose certain docunents;
relating to procedures for procurenent by the onbudsman;
relating to the definition of 'agency' for purposes of the
Onbudsman Act and providing jurisdiction of the onbudsman over
persons providing certain services to the state by contract; and
anmendi ng Rul es 501 and 503, Al aska Rul es of Evidence."

- MOVED CSHB 127(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 127

SHORT TI TLE: QOVBUDSMAN
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2014



02/ 18/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 18/ 13 (H STA, JUD

03/12/ 13 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 12/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/12/ 13 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 21/ 13 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 21/ 13 (H <Bill Hearing Rescheduled to 3/26/ 13>
03/ 26/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 26/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d; Assigned to Subcommttee
03/ 26/ 13 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 07/ 14 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TCOL 120

02/ 07/ 14 (H Wrk Session on above Bill

02/ 25/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 25/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 27/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 27/ 14 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 14 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

BETH LEI BOWN TZ, Assistant QOrbudsman

O fice of the Orbudsman

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes nmade in the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 127, Version 28-LS0088\T,
Gardner, 3/5/14, and answered questi ons.

JI M POUND, Staff

Representative Wes Kel | er

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed the changes nmade in the conmittee
substitute (CS) to HB 127, Version 28-LS0088/ T, Gardner, 3/5/14.

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, Onbudsnman

O fice of the Orbudsman

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 127.

REE SAI LORS, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 127.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2014



STEPHEN J. Van GOOR, Bar Counse

Di sci pline

Al aska Bar Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 127.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Public Def ender

Public Defender's Ofice

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 127.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:10: 03 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:10 a.m Representatives Keller, Gattis
Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the call to

or der.

HB 127- OVBUDSVAN

8:11:12 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the only order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 127, "An Act clarifying that the Al aska Bar Association is
an agency for purposes of investigations by the onbudsman;
relating to conpensation of the onbudsman and to enploynent of
staff by the onbudsnman under personal service contracts;
providing that certain records of comunications between the
onbudsman and an agency are not public records; relating to
di sclosure by an agency to the onbudsnan of comunications
subject to attorney-client and attorney work-product privileges;
relating to informal and fornal reports of opinions and
recommendations issued by the onbudsman; relating to the
privilege of the onbudsman not to testify and creating a
privilege under which the onbudsman is not required to disclose
certain docunents; relating to procedures for procurenment by the
onbudsman; relating to the definition of 'agency' for purposes
of the Onbudsman Act and providing jurisdiction of the onmbudsnan
over persons providing certain services to the state by
contract; and anmending Rules 501 and 503, Alaska Rules of
Evi dence. "

8:11:47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 127, Version 28-LS0088\T, Gardner,
3/5/14, as a work draft.

CHAI R LYNN obj ected for discussion purposes.
8:12: 14 AM

BETH LEIBOWNTZ, Assistant Onbudsman, Ofice of the Orbudsman,
expl ai ned the changes nmade in the proposed committee substitute
(CS) for HB 127, Version 28-LS0088\T, Gardner, 3/5/14 ("Version
™). She said the first change was effected via an anmendnment
passed at the previous hearing, which was to renove reference to
residential child care facilities and residential psychiatric
treatment facilities. She said the Ofice of the Onbudsman has
asked for two changes. She directed attention to Section 6 of
Version T, which would anmend AS 24.55.160(a)(4), which read as
foll ows:

(4) notw thstanding other provisions of |aw,
have access at all times to records of every [STATE]
agency, including confidential records, except sealed
court records, production of which wmy only be
conpelled by subpoena, and except for records of
active crimnal investigations and records that could
| ead to t he identity of confidenti al police
i nf or mant s.

MS. LEIBOWTZ said the O fice of the Orbudsman asked to have the
word "state" renoved, because "if our jurisdiction expands to
cover any nonstate entities, our records access was not going to
expand with it." She said this change would bring the |anguage
back in line with the rest of that statute.

M5. LEIBONTZ said the Ofice of the Onbudsman al so request a
change in Section 7, which read as foll ows:

*Sec.7.AS 24.55.160 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(c) Disclosure by an agency to the onmbudsnan
under this chapter of a communication that is subject
to the attorney-client privilege, or attorney work-
product privilege, does not waive the privilege as to
any other person. The onbudsman may not disclose a
privil eged communi cat i on provi ded under this
subsecti on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2014



MS. LEIBOWTZ said the Ofice of the Orbudsman would |ike the

foll ow ng sentence added: "The Ofice of the Orbudsman may not
disclose a privileged communication provided under this
subsection. " She said this seens self-evident, given that AS

24.55.160(b) already says that the Ofice of the Orbudsman will
not disclose a confidential record received from an agency;
however, the definition of record for the Ofice of the
Onbudsman' s statute expressly excl udes attorney-client
privileged material and attorney work product.

8:15: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES rel ayed that she had been readi ng through
statutes addressing investigative procedures, and she said, "It
seens |like that was already covered, but maybe |'m missing
sonething."” She read [AS 24.55.160(b)], as foll ows:

(b) The onbudsman shall maintain confidentiality
with respect to all matters and the identities of the
conpl ainants or wtnesses comng before the onbudsman
except insofar as disclosures nay be necessary to
enable the onbudsman to carry out duties and to

support reconmendati ons. However, the onbudsman nay
not disclose a confidential record obtained from an
agency.

8:16: 16 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ reiterated that she thought that was well covered
until she |ooked closer and saw, in AS 24.55.330(3), that the

definition of "record" does not include attorney-client
privileged conmuni cations, and the Ofice of the Orbudsnman wants
that material, if given to the office, to be just as protected

as any other confidential material that it receives.
8:.17:26 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ stated that the Ofice of the Orbudsman does not
support the changes proposed in Sections 3, 4, and 5, which she
offered her understanding were suggested by Representative
Kel | er. She said the new | anguage proposed in Section 3 would
allow the chair of the Admnistrative Regulation Review
Commttee to request an investigation of an administrative act
of an agency. She said this would create two classes of
conpl ai nant : the legislative requestor and all the other
conpl ainants served by the Ofice of the Orbudsnan. She opi ned
that "a legislative request is the 800-pound gorilla in a room

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2014



full of conplainants.” She said the Ofice of the Orbudsman was
created to serve individuals with no other recourse, and the
| egislature has other recourse, including the ability to
subpoena, to hold hearings, and to request audits, which gives
it nmore power than individual conplainants.

8:20: 06 AM

JIM POUND, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Alaska State
Legi slature, explained that originally the legislature was able
to renove a regulation by resolution, but "the alive decision”
changed that so that the legislature now has to pass a bill in
order to renove a regulation. That requires the agreenent of
bot h houses, as well as the okay of the governor. He said often
the Adm nistrative Regulation Review gets "shut down," because
the attitude of agencies is, "W don't care; what are you going
to do about it?" He said when the Ofice of the Orbudsman
approaches the agencies "it's a different animal."” He indicated
that the intent of [changes proposed in Sections 3-5] would give
the chair of the Admnistrative Regulation Review another
opti on.

M5. LEIBONTZ offered her understanding that it would be the
chair of the Adm nistrative Regul ati on Review who woul d be given
the ability to nmake the request, wthout even the requirenent
for a commttee vote. She said the main issue is that the
proposed |anguage would result in a legislator's request for
i nvestigation, and she said she does not think the issues that
would cone from the chair of the Admnistrative Regulation
Revi ew woul d be sinple, straight-forward investigative issues.

8:23: 06 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS asked how - if the purpose of
Section 3 is to get agencies to back down - the Ofice of the

Onbudsman would "have the power to have agencies abandon or
| oosen regulations that the chair of the [Admnistrative]
Regul ation Review Comrittee wants to be gone or wants to be
changed. " He further asked the reason for proposing just the
chair of the Administrative Regul ati on Review.

MR. POUND responded that it would be "just another tool in the

tool box" to address the current "out-of-control”™ regulation
process. He said regulations are promulgated that quite often
do not mmc or interpret law, but rather "becone law." He said

the Administrative Regul ati on Review Conmittee has no
investigative authority, other than holding a hearing, whereas

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2014



the Ofice of the Orbudsnman has the ability to wite a report
and file it with the agency, and that report becones nore of a
public record. He indicated that the docunents created by the
Ofice of the Onbudsman are permssible in court, but docunents
created by the legislature are not, "just because it's a public
hearing."

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS said he understands the intent,

but is struggling to see how making the Ofice of the Orbudsman
the investigatory agency of the Adm nistrative Regul ation Review
Conmittee woul d sol ve the probl em of regul atory oversight.

8:25:37 AM

MR. POUND, to Representative Kreiss-Tonkins' previously stated
second question, said just because a request would conme fromthe
chair of the commttee, does not nean it would be a unilateral
deci sion, and he indicated that the |anguage could be changed to
reflect the entire commttee's involvenent.

8:25:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS surmsed that there are other ways that
the Adm nistrative Regulation Review Commttee could spread the
wor d.

8:27:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said the legislature has nade the Ofice
of the Onbudsman independent to keep politics out of it;
however, the office is the investigative armof the |egislature.
He stated his belief that where the |egislature spends noney
there is the potential for admnistrative acts that cause
problens for the citizens of Al aska, thus having a venue for

them to register a conplaint is inportant. He said he thinks
the legislature is "not enough in tune with that ability and
responsibility."” He said the proposed |anguage would just
provide a link, which he opined would not be an intimdating
one. He enphasized that it is wthin the jurisdiction of the
legislature to do this, and he predicted it would increase
ef fectiveness and communi cati on. He opined that "we" need nore

feedback regarding the cases that the Ofice of the QOrbudsman
declines to investigate. He nentioned the challenge of keeping
up with conplaints with limted resources. He pointed out that
the Adm nistrative Regulation Review Conmttee represents both
t he House and the Senate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2014



8:30: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES, regarding the 800-pound gorilla in the
room asked Ms. Leibowitz if there is anything currently that
woul d prevent a legislator - as an individual, not a nenber of
the legislature - from requesting an investigation regarding
regul ati ons.

MS. LEIBONTZ answered that a legislator could not becone a
conplainant for an issue that did not involve hinfher
personal ly; however, he/she could certainly ask the Ofice of
the Onbudsman at any tinme to decide whether an issue warrants an
onbudsman-initiated investigation. She said there have been
cases like that. She noted that the onbudsman, Linda Lord-
Jenkins, was available via teleconference to offer further
i nformation.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked, "So, if it doesn't personally
i mpact the legislature, you could still decide to take it on, is
that correct?"

V5. LEIBOWN TZ answered yes.
8:32: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if there is any obligation for the
agency involved in a conplaint to provide a followup report
show ng what steps have been taken related to the conplaint.

M5. LEIBONTZ confirmed that as part of the report process,
agencies are required to respond. If they do not respond, the
Ofice of the Orbudsman will issue a report anyway. She said
the agency is asked to respond to a confidential prelimnary
report, and the final report incorporates the agency's response
through the findings and recomrendations. In response to a
foll ow-up question, she confirmed the response of the agencies
becone public.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said Representative GGattis nade a good
point that there is nothing currently that would prevent
"sonething to be made public" by the chair of the Administrative
Regul ati on Review Comm ttee; however, she said she can see how,
under Version T, "there would be ... a Ilittle bit [of]
difference than just the way it is right now because that
report and response would both be out there, and the public
woul d know if the problem will or will not be addressed.” She
said she does not see the Ofice of the Orbudsman as having

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2014



enforcenment authority, only investigatory capabilities. She
added, "But it does require, then, a response, so the idea is
that hopefully things will be fixed."

8:34:57 AM
The conmmittee took a brief at-ease at 8:35 a.m
8:35: 52 AM

M5. LEIBOWNTZ said Representative Hughes is correct that the
Ofice of the Onbudsman does not have enforcenment authority.
She said she does not know what an onbudsman's report can do
that cannot be done by the Admnistrative Regulation Review
Commttee as a legislative comrittee with the power to require
agency enployees to conme and testify and respond to the
commttee on public record and with auditors, attorneys and
researchers at its disposal, especially when considering that
those who cone to the Ofice of the Onbudsman with conplaints
have none of those resources available to them

8:37:21 AM

MR. POUND said the Administrative Regulation Review Commttee
can subpoena admnistrative staff and bring them before the
comittee, but t hat staff can [refuse to give forth
i nformation].

8:37:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS asked what wuld keep a person from
[refusing to talk] to the Ofice of the Orbudsnan.

MR. POUND answered that that is not allowed under statute. He
pointed out that the investigation done through the Ofice of
the Onrbudsman is confidential wuntil the full report is done,
whereas the committee process is public.

8:38:42 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS said it is difficult to understand
how soneone's constitutional rights are suspended when the

O fice of the Orbudsman opens up an investigation.

MR POUND indicated that he did not know why either, but
reiterated that the statute was witten giving authority to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 6, 2014



Ofice of the Onbudsman to investigate and bring wtnesses
"behi nd cl osed doors" to get information.

REPRESENTATI VE  KREI SS-TOWKINS asked if the Admnistrative
Regul ati on Review Conm ttee has encountered many people who have
called wupon their constitutional right not to respond to a
guesti on.

MR. POUND recollected that the Departnent of Education & Early
Devel opnent and the fire nmarshal have refused to respond. In
response to a followup question, he clarified that those
entities refused to conme to the hearing.

8:40: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked why the Admnistrative Regulation
Review Commttee did not subpoena those who refused to attend
t he neeting.

MR POUND said at the tinme the chair of the commttee did not
think it was worth the trouble.

8:41:42 AM

LI NDA LORD- JENKI NS, Orbudsman, O fice of the Onbudsman, stated
that the Ofice of the Orbudsman does not, by statute, submt
reports to the court. The office has inmmunity from testifying.
She said the onbudsnmen in Alaska and in the rest of the US.,
under the United States Onbudsman Association (USOA) Model
Orbudsman Act for State Governnents, believe that they "should

not be testifying in court"; therefore, the Ofice of the
Onbudsman has not submitted reports to a court venue. She said,
"Individual litigants in a court matter, if they'd gone to the

onbudsman, could present a report to the court, but we don't go
to court and testify to support (indisc.)."

M5. LORD-JENKINS confirmed that the O fice of the Orbudsman does
have the power of subpoena; however, she said she does not
recall that power being discussed in the context of exercising
5th Anmendnent rights, because generally that is in a crimnal
context, whereas the Ofice of the Orbudsman's reviews are
admnistrative. She said the onbudsman's authority is to nmake a
good case for a matter and reconmend "fixes" it hopes agencies
will agree to adopt; however, the Ofice of the Orbudsman cannot
force the agencies to take action. |If an agency declines to fix
a situation or does a good job fixing one, the Ofice of the
Orbudsman has the option to nmake that information public, which

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 6, 2014



she said often serves as a power of persuasion or tipping point
for agencies to, in good faith, try to fix a problem She said
releasing a report to the nedia is up to the discretion of the
onbudsman. She said that in her ten years as onbudsman, her
of fice has released reports to the nmedia on two occasi ons.

8:45:49 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ said the Ofice of the Onbudsnman objects to
Section 4 of Version T, because although it supports the
reporting of agency problens to the legislature, it is not clear
what | egislative purpose would be served by giving out the nane
of the individual conplainant to the chair of a |legislative
comm ttee. She pointed out that individual conplainants are
constituents, and while the Ofice of the Orbudsman can refer
themto legislators, explain commttee structures, and give them
contact information, the decision to contact a |egislator should
bel ong to the constituent. She said it is not the proper role
of the Ofice of the Orbudsman to be in the mddle of that
relationship and neking that communication for a constituent.
In response to the chair, she enphasized that even with the
conplainant's consent, the office would strongly encourage the
conplainant to initiate the comunication with the |egislature,
because it is not the proper role of the onbudsman to do so.
She rem nded the House State Affairs Standing Commttee that the
USOA standards talk about the onbudsman's obligation of
confidentiality, except as necessary to carry out t he
investigation and support recomendations, and she reiterated
that it is wunclear "how this serves any of the onbudsman's
actual functions or better inforns the legislature about the
nature of problens wth state governnent."

8:48: 25 AM

MR. POUND said the reason the Adm nistrative Regulation Review
Conmttee was chosen was so that the Ofice of the Orbudsman
woul d have to contact just one conmttee. He said the reason
for proposing a consenting conplainant's nanme be disclosed is to
make it possible for the Admnistrative Regulation Review
Commttee to know who to contact if they want to offer further
i nvestigation.

8:49:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked Ms. Leibowitz what the problem woul d
be in a legislator being able to help a constituent follow up on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2014



a problem when that constituent, as the conplainant, has
consented to disclosure.

M5. LEIBOWNTZ offered her understanding that what Representative
Gattis described already occurs. She said if a conplainant
contacts the Ofice of the Onbudsman and lets it be known that
he/ she has worked with a legislator on an issue, or if the
| egislator refers the conplainant to the Ofice of the
Onbudsman, it is routine and expected for the Ofice of the
Onbudsman to ask the conplainant if he/she is okay with the
office sharing information about the case with the |egislator.
She said the conplainant generally says yes. In response to
Representative Gattis, she offered her understanding that the
proposed | egi sl ation proposes that when, for exanple, the Ofice
the Orbudsnan sends a letter declining an innmate's conplaint
because he/she has not used the grievance system within the

Departnent of Corrections, it wuld also ask the inmate's
permssion to give his/her name to the chair of the
Adm ni strative Regulation Review Conmttee. She expressed

bew | dernment as to the purpose of that proposed | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTIS offered her understanding that a
constituent who cones to a legislator with a conplaint and does
not get the feedback he/she was |ooking for can call upon the
Ofice of the Onbudsman wthout +the intervention of the
| egi sl at or.

M5. LEIBONTZ responded, "I believe Representative Gttis is
correct."

8:53: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that [Section 4] would pertain
to cases that the Ofice of the Orbudsman chooses not to
i nvesti gate.

8:53:46 AM
M5. LORD-JENKINS asked if that would pertain only to conplaints

turned away by the Ofice of the Orbudsnan that were referred to
the office by the chair of the Adm nistrative Regulation Review

Committee or all conplaints that cone in the door. If the
|atter, she said it would be a tine-consumng process if the
Ofice of the Onbudsman were witing letters to each

conpl ai nant, redacting them as appropriate, and then sending a
redacted version to the chair of the commttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2014



IVB. LORD- JENKINS  confirned t hat in t he af orenenti oned
ci rcunst ances wherein the conplainant has been referred to the
Ofice of the Orbudsman by a legislator or has notified the
| egislator that he/she is dealing with the onbudsman or has
approached the legislator after being dissatisfied with the
onbudsman, with perm ssion of the conplainant, the Ofice of the
Onbudsman can talk to the |egislator about the case. However,
the Ofice of the Orbudsman generally provides status
i nformati on, because "it doesn't do an investigation any good to
have a lot of cooks ... in the stew"” She expressed concern
that the O fice of the Orbudsman, if required to report back to
| egislators, would be "micronmanaged in the manner in which we

are conducting investigations." She cautioned against that.
Ms. Lord-Jenkins stated that the Ofice of the Orbudsman does
its best backing off and waiting until a legislative office is

done reviewing a conplainant's concern, because there's no need
to spend its efforts if the legislative office is going forward
with a review She explained that [getting involved before
then] creates confusion on the part of the conplainant and the
agency, and "tends to nuddy the waters."

8:56:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked Representative Keller to explain the
ci rcunstance and road blocks that pronpted his recomrendi ng the
| anguage being discussed, and to clarify what he hoped to
address through it.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasized that he is not attenpting to
fix the Adm nistrative Regulation Review Conmittee with Version
T. He said he has appealed to the Ofice of the Onbudsman to
find ways to inprove comunication between it and the
| egi sl ative body. He expressed his hope that "this applies to
every conplaint that the onbudsman doesn't address.” He
mentioned one idea had been to connect zip codes wth
conplainants and their legislators, but the zip codes did not

line up wth Jlegislative districts. He stated that the
| egi slature has a vested interest in knowi ng how many cases are
not being investigated and why. In response to Representative

Gattis, he indicated that he was pronpted to propose [the
| anguage in Sections 3 through 5] by a desire for the Ofice of
the Onbudsman to have a better relationship with the |egislature
so that legislators can be "faithful to this duty of responding
to conpl ai nants. "

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS asked Representative Keller to confirm
that he is saying he has experienced cases in which, after

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 6, 2014



receiving permssion from the conplainant to interact with the
Ofice of the Orbudsnman, he has not heard back from the
onmbudsman.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered vyes, but enphasized that the
Ofice of the Orbudsman was followng statutes that the
| egislature <created; therefore, he 1is not criticizing the
onmbudsman.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS said that is not what she heard from M.
Lei bowitz, who, she recollected, had indicated that given the
rel ease of confidentiality the Ofice of the Onbudsman could
work with the legislator and constituent, if the constituent had
given his/her perm ssion. She concluded, "I thought I'm hearing
that in statute they already have that opportunity, [so it is]
unnecessary to put another one in."

9:03:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said currently the constituent has to
initiate the involvenent of a legislator's office, but under
Version T, the legislator could "initiate it." She asked Ms.
Leibowitz to clarify how the Ofice of the Orbudsman currently
handles a situation in which it has declined a case and the
conpl ainant goes to the legislator and the |egislator contacts
the Ofice of the Orbudsman.

M5. LEIBONTZ answered that the Ofice of the Onbudsman woul d
contact the conplainant as quickly as possible to find out if
he/she wanted to give the office permssion to discuss the
conplaint with the legislator's office. If the answer is yes,
then the Ofice of the Orbudsman woul d di scuss the case with the
legislator to the extent it is able given its restrictions
regarding the release of confidential I nformati on. She
explained that the Ofice of the Orbudsman often has access to
information that allows it to evaluate the conplaint, but it may
not be able to give that information to the legislator or the
conpl ai nant .

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES concluded that currently "we" have a way
for the conmmunication to occur if the individual initiates it,
but there is "no way for the communication to occur with the
legislator initiating it," because the |egislator would not have
the name of the person. Regardi ng the suggested need for the
| egi slature to know the nunber of and reason for cases declined,
she asked if the Ofice of the Onbudsman has been reporting that
information to the |egislature.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2014



M5. LEIBOWTZ answered that the Ofice of the Onbudsman issues
an annual report, and she deferred to M. Lord-Jenkins for
further discussion. She added that the Ofice of the Onbudsman
has the ability to provide public summaries of closed conplaints
and could do so by request for any legislative office. She said
those summaries, while not identifying the conplainant, provide
the basic allegation of the conplaint, the agency or agencies
i nvol ved, and a sunmary of the reason the conplaint was cl osed.

9:07:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS stated that he has difficulty
accepting Sections 4 and 5, because he is not certain there is a
problem that needs to be fixed. He said the Administrative
Regul ati on Review Commttee already has the power of subpoena at
its disposal, and it is the prerogative of that commttee to
decline to use that tool. He said while he appreciates the
intent behind Sections 3, 4, and 5, he thinks it cones down to a
fundanental question of whether the onbudsman works for the
people or the legislature. He stated his understanding that the
onmbudsman works for the people and has no obligation to report

to legislators or the |legislature. He said he thinks the
| egislature already has its own investigatory agency through
Legislative Audit. He opined that there is nothing to fix in

terms of confidentiality or independence as it relates to the
O fice of the Orbudsman. He suggested that perhaps [Sections 2-
5] would receive a nore thorough consideration in the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmitt ee.

CHAIR LYNN said the Ofice of the Orbudsnan is a creation of the
| egi sl ature.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS responded that it is up to the
| egislative branch to preserve the independence of the
onmbudsman.

9:10: 34 AM

MR POUND said the reason for choosing the Admnistrative
Regul ation Review is that it neets year-round and is made up of
both | egislative bodies. He remarked upon the singular nature
of the Legislative Budget & Audit [Committee' s] authority. He
said under existing requirenents, the onbudsman can submt an
oral report to the legislature, unless a witten report has
specifically been requested.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 6, 2014



9:12: 01 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ offered her understanding that under the proposed
Section 5 of Version T, the onbudsman would declare in witing
the reasons for declining complaints. She said she is not sure
of the intent of Section 5, because under current l|aw, the
O fice of the Orbudsman can routinely provide a basic summary of

why it has declined a conplaint. She said it cannot, in many
cases, sinply provide a copy of the letter provided to the
conpl ai nant, because of confidentiality reasons. She gave an

exanpl e, wherein the conplaint related to child support.
9:13:29 AM

MR. POUND said Section 5 relates to conplaints that are being
deni ed, not ones that have been investigated.

9:13: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS asked if there have been circunstances
where people were not happy that the Ofice of the Onbudsman
refused to consider conplaints, such that Section 5 is necessary
to prevent the onbudsman from arbitrarily turning sonmebody down.
She said she has not heard any specific exanples, and she is a
proponent of not fixing something that is not broken.

9:14:40 AM

MR. POUND responded, "Part of the reason is because we're not
receiving the information on what's being denied.” He added
that it is not possible to cite sonething that does not exist.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS reiterated that she has not heard any
conpelling reasons today that there is a problem She said she
woul d expect to have heard repeatedly from constituents, but has
not .

MR. POUND, in response to the chair, confirned that the proposed
| anguage is nore a preventive neasure.

9:16: 22 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES renarked that she has not received such a

call from a constituent either, but asked Representative Keller
i f he has.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered that he has never received any
i nformati on about any investigation that has been declined, but
explained it is that which concerns him because "we want to get

a scope on ... what is being mssed out there." He said he
woul d |ike Ms. Lord-Jenkins to tal k about how the office reports
cases that it does not investigate. He said a "report" is a
judgment call, and there is criterion in statute for cases that

are not investigated.
9:18: 00 AM

M5. LORD-JENKINS said a legislator may get a call from sonmeone
conplaining that the Ofice of the Odbudsman would not
i nvestigate his/her conplaint. She said that often translates
in a nunber of ways: the Ofice of the QOrbudsman nay decline to
investigate the conplaint, because the conplainant had not used
the existing grievance appeal process; the Ofice of the
Onbudsman nmay decide that the situation for which there is a
conpl ai nt happened too | ong ago under the regulatory tinme frane;
or the conplainant m ght not have sufficient personal interest.
She said she has seen repeatedly where [the Ofice of the
Orbudsman] mght send a five-page letter explaining why it
declined a case, and the conplainant only hears "no." She said
the O fice of the Orbudsman docunents its declined cases, and it
woul d be happy to provide the public versions of the closing
sunmari es, which have the associated case nunber attached. She
expressed her concern that the Ofice of the Onbudsman m ght be
required to docunment in a letter each one of "these," which she
sai d woul d be onerous.

M5. LORD-JENKINS, regarding previous discussion of Section 4, on
the topic of a legislator that may contact the onbudsman after
being contacted by a constituent, stated that under statute and
confidentiality requirenents, the Ofice of the Orbudsnman cannot
speak to the |egislator about the conplainant, wthout express
perm ssion from the conplainant waiving confidentiality as to
that or any legislator. She said she has had several instances
where individuals have received an answer fromthe Ofice of the
Onbudsman and gone to their legislators, and the onbudsman has
asked the conpl ai nant for permssion to speak to the
| egislator(s), and the conplainant has declined. Ms. Lord-
Jenki ns reenphasi zed that under such circunstances, the Ofice
of the Orbudsnman would not be allowed to discuss the case with
the legislator(s).

9:21:57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2014



REE SAI LORS, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Department of Health & Socia

Services, relayed that by reading the |atest annual report [from
the Ofice of the Orbudsman], she found out that there had been
290 conpl aints against the departnent. She indicated that 194
of the conplaints were against the Ofice of Children's Services
(OCS), and of those 194, 100 were released either via a court
decision or as being inappropriate for the Ofice of the
Orbudsman; 15 were either resolved or deened inappropriate; and
75 cases were considered by the Ofice of the Orbudsman. Ms.

Sailors said the departnent has had an ongoing working
relationship with the Ofice of the Orbudsman. She said the
fact that the departnent serves 200,000 Al askans gives it anple
opportunity to be exposed to conplaints, and the departnent is
run by human beings, thus it is capable of making m stakes.

M5. SAILORS questioned proposed changes related to grantees and
contractors. She referred to |anguage, addressed by the
committee at its [2/27/14] hearing, [found in Section 6 of HB
127, Version 28-LS0088\G Gardner, 2/13/14, on page 3, lines 6-
27, which read as follows]:

* Sec. 6. AS 24.55.330(2) is anended to read:

(2) "agency" includes a departnent, office,
institution, cor porati on, aut hority, or gani zati on,
comm ssion, commttee, instrunentality, council, or
board of a nunicipality or in the executive,
| egi sl ative, or judicial branches of the state
government, and a departnent, office, institution,
cor porati on, authority, or gani zati on, conmi ssi on,
commttee, instrunentality, council, or board of a

muni ci pality or of the state governnent independent of
the executive, legislative, and judicial branches, or
a person under a contract with a state agency or a
person who has been awarded a grant from a state
agency to provide a prison, halfway house, or simlar
residential service on behalf of the Departnment of
Corrections, to provide a juvenile correctional or
detention facility, hone, or work canp as authorized
by AS 47.14.010 - 47.14.050, to provide a residential
child care facility or a residential psychiatric
treatment center as defined in AS 47.32.900 to the
extent that the facility or treatnent center accepts
pl acenent of juveniles commtted to the custody of the
Departnment of Health and Social Services, or to
determne eligibility for a state program or benefit;
it also includes an officer, enployee, or nenber of an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2014



"agency" acting or purporting to act in the exercise
of official duties, but does not include the governor,
the |ieutenant governor, a nenber of the |egislature,
the victinms' advocate, the staff of the office of
victims' rights, a justice of the suprene court, a
judge of the court of appeals, a superior court judge,
a district court judge, a nmmgistrate, a nenber of a
city council or borough assenbly, an elected city or
bor ough mayor, or a nenber of an el ected school board;

M5. SAILORS remarked that at the |ast hearing, the conmttee had
adopted [Amendnent 1, which renoved the follow ng | anguage from
lines 17-20, on page 3, of Section 6]:

, to provide a residential child care facility or a
residential psychiatric treatnent center as defined in
AS 47.32.900 to the extent that the facility or
t r eat nent center accepts pl acenent of juvenil es
coomitted to the custody of the Departnent of Health
and Soci al Services

M5. SAILORS indicated that it is the opinion of the departnent
that the adopted Anendnent 1 did not go far enough, because it
left in the Division of Juvenile Justice. She expl ai ned that
the departnment does not believe the division belongs in the
| anguage because it does not have contracts or grants wth
anyone regarding justice facilities; therefore, "we're kind of
tal ki ng about sonething that doesn't exist." She comented that
the statutory |anguage is old. For exanple, she said she has
tal ked to enpl oyees who have worked for the departnment for over
17 years, and they have never seen or heard of a "work canp".
She stated the departnment's wsh that the references to
"juvenile detention facilities, homes, et cetera, that remain in
the bill" be renoved.

9: 24: 50 AM

M5. SAILORS said another issue for the departnment has to do with
grantees or contractors who would determine eligibility for
servi ces. She offered her understanding that this would apply
to all state agencies. She said the departnent's position is
that it is responsible for "these actions and our grantees and
their actions.” She said the departnment fears unintended
consequences of the proposed |egislation. She indicated that
defining grantees and contractors as agencies creates a
situation where, under the requirenents of the proposed
| egislation, they are not to release information. She said the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2014



department questions whether the Ofice of the Onbudsman woul d
be able to "release information about one of those agencies to
us so that we can have our ability to investigate and sanction
and take regulatory actions.™ She said the inability of
grantees and contractors to share information wth the
departnment, which has the enforcenent powers, |eaves the
departnment in "a void." She said the departnment, in sone
i nstances, licenses its grantees, thus, it has strings attached
via the funding, which the grantee receives fromthe departnent.

M5. SAILORS said the departnent also has the capability to
"bring in disciplinary teans" and "to work quickly." She
indicated that the departnment has observed a lag in tinme from
the point at which the Ofice of the Orbudsman starts an
investigation to the time the report of that investigation is
conpleted. M. Sailors characterized the possible result of the
separation of grantees from the departnent as a "potential for
triangul ation,” which she said she thinks would bifurcate "the
accountability and the responsibility that we feel we have to
the resources" appropriated and requirenents given to the
departnment by the legislature to provide services in the state,
"whether it's through contract, grantees, or ourselves.” She
said she thinks the aforenmentioned |anguage nay potentially
interfere with the departnent's ability "to take advantage of a
situation where the onbudsman would go in." She said if the
| anguage is kept as is, the department strongly requests that it
be notified when the Ofice of the Orbudsman either receives a
conplaint or initiates an investigation, so that the departnent
“can nove quickly into a situation.” She said the departnent
not only has worked in cooperation with the Ofice of the
Orbudsman, it has also worked on out-of-state situations wth
the help of authorities in other states. She said, "So, we have

certain enforcenment powers that we don't want to have
delayed or interfered by virtue of this confidentiality
situation.”

9:28:46 AM

M5. SAILORS, returning to the issue of juvenile justice, said
the philosophy in Alaska for sonme tine now has been one of
services, treatnent, and building a sense of responsibility and
accountability for youth in the juvenile justice system She
said the departnent deals with nedical records for nedical and
psychiatric treatnent and holds +those records wthin its
facilities. She recollected that Representative Hughes had
asked about the security of personal health information. She
said the departnment is concerned that there be sone provision

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2014



that is consistent with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (H PAA). She said H PAA does allow people to
have access to personal health information if it is required in
st at ut e; however , t he depart ment is concer ned Wi th
interpretation of existing |anguage as it relates to the ability
to access records of personal health information w thout notice
to or consent of the individual. She recounted that the State
of Al aska has been fined by the federal Departnent of Justice's
Ofice of GCvil R ghts, in excess of a mllion dollars, for a
guestionabl e breach regardi ng personal health information. She
said there is a nationw de novenent to take strong regul atory
action against states, as well as private entities, for
violating H PAA. She said she would hate to have the Ofice of
the Orbudsman, as an entity of the state, "trigger another
fine." She indicated that as a result of the aforenmentioned
breach, the State of Al aska has had to contract with nonitors
that watch what the state does. Ms. Sailors opined that in
order to protect the right of privacy, there should be "a
requirenent to get a very exclusive consent to access personal
heal th records."

9:32: 07 AM

M5. SAILORS said she thinks the attorney-client privilege issue
is of concern to the departnent, which feels it has the right to
get its own counsel. She recollected an exanple had been given
that in the past "we" asked "an agency” why it had chosen a
particul ar course of action, and the agency said it was advised
by its attorneys, but it would not divulge further infornmation

She stated that having been an "investigator of things" in her
past, it is her opinion that an investigation does not need "to
turn on a confidential advice neno from an attorney to a

client." She concluded, "The evidence is there, the facts are
there, the law is there, and the availability of interpretation
wi thout the benefit of sonebody else's counsel, is certainly

avai |l able to be nmade."
9:33: 02 AM

VB. LEIBONTZ said the section addressing attorney-client
privileged information is phrased such that it is not a nandate
to the Ofice of the Onbudsman to obtain the information, but
rather it is an option for the agency. She said the Ofice of
t he Orbudsman cannot and does not want to "conpel the offering
up of that kind of information." She stated, "That section is
intended to function so that an agency can give us that
information wthout it comng back to cause them damage in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 6, 2014



unrelated litigation or in another context." She said if an
agency refuses to tell the Ofice of the Onbudsman what the
attorney general said, then "that's howit is" and the Ofice of
the Orbudsman would then "pull what facts it can” and nove on
with the investigation as M. Sailors noted. She concl uded,
"Sonetines the agency actually prefers to be frank with us about
what it is they got by way of advice, but that is [an] option

not a requirenment.”

9:34: 38 AM

MR. POUND recommended that if the committee was going to adopt
Version T as a work draft, it should delete "to any other
conplainant,” from page 2, l|lines 24-25, because he said it could
be interpreted as any person being allowed access to the Ofice
of the Onbudsman's reason for not investigating a conplaint.

9:35:51 AM

CHAIR LYNN renoved his objection to the notion to adopt the
proposed conmttee substitute (CS) for HB 127, Version 28-
LSO088\T, Gardner, 3/5/14, as a work draft. [ There being no
further objection, Version T was before the comittee.]

9: 35: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1 to
HB 127, Version T, as follows:

On page 2, |line 24:

Following "Conmmittee,"
Del ete "or to any other conplainant,”

There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
9:37:20 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he would |ike to hear from soneone with |egal
expertise, but indicated he nmay |eave debate of sonme issue to
t he House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

9: 37: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES requested that the House Judiciary

Standing Conmittee consider her concern that nedical records
obtained are destroyed sonetines only on an annual basis. In

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 6, 2014



response to Representative Keller, she said she had not spoken
with Ms. Leibowitz about this issue, but she stated her belief
that nedical files should be destroyed immediately after they
are no | onger needed.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, [as chair of the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee], comritted to addressing that issue.

9:40: 04 AM

STEPHEN J. Van GOOR, Bar Counsel, D scipline, Alaska Bar
Association (ABA), stated that the disciplinary process in

Alaska is working; it is strictly supervised by the Al aska
Suprenme Court and the ABA's disciplinary board. He said
multiple levels of review are already in the disciplinary
enforcement rules concerning investigation and prosecution. A
conpl ai nant - anyone dissatisfied with the decision of the ABA
not to open an investigation - can have the decision reviewed by
a disciplinary board menber called the board I|iaison. The
conplainant, if still dissatisfied, can file an application for
direct review by the Al aska Supreme Court. M. Van Goor said

that has happened. Simlarly, a decision to dismss a grievance
after investigation can be reviewed by a nmenber of a hearing
panel, after which, if the conplainant is still not satisfied,
he/ she can petition the Al aska Suprenme Court for a review of
t hat deci si on.

MR, Van GOOR said when the rules of disciplinary enforcenent
were revised in the 1980s, public nenbers were added to the
board of governors by the legislature and becane involved in the
critical stage of the disciplinary process as nenbers of hearing
panel s, which hear evidence and make findings, conclusions, and
recommendati ons. He enphasized that those recomendations go to
the disciplinary board, which conprises 12 nenbers, three of
whom are public nmenbers subject to confirmation by the

| egi sl ature. He said every legislative audit conducted of the
ABA since the '80s has reconmended the continuation of the
[ di sciplinary] board and its responsibility for t he
i nvestigation and prosecution of attorney m sconduct. He stated

that the system is not broken, but would be if the proposed
anendnents in Version T are adopted. He said | awers often have
to explain what was done on a client's behalf, and that involves
confidential informtion. He said clients would not be sure
that confidential information would be protected, since it would
be subject to review outside of the disciplinary process.

9:42: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 6, 2014



MR Van GOOR said the two obligations an attorney has to a
client are loyalty and confidentiality, but a |lawer would have
no recourse if a non-lawer spread confidential information
outside of the disciplinary process. He stated that even though
the staff in the Ofice of the Orbudsman includes three | awers,
none of those l|lawers are in an attorney-client privileged
relationship with the person making the conplaint. Furt her,
none of those |awers are specifically authorized access to the
information under the Alaska Suprene Court's procedural rules.
He said the ABA could not conply with a request for an
i nvestigation, because of requirenents inposed on the process by
rul es adopted by the court. He said Doug Gardner, the director
of Legislative Legal and Research Services, confirnmed the
court's inherent authority in this area in a nenorandum dated
March 21, 2013. M. Van Goor predicted that the Ofice of the
Orbudsman would be frustrated, as would the ABA, which would be
"stuck in the mddle of this situation.” He concl uded by
requesting on behalf of the ABA that the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee amend Version T either by stating that the
ABA is not an agency for the purposes of the Ofice of the
Orbudsman's jurisdiction or by listing the ABA as exenpt in the
list of exenpted officials. He said, "That would answer the
onbudsman's question regarding jurisdiction that she posed |ast
year and would avoid the problens | just identified. "

9:44: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS stated for the record that she had an
amendnment that she would hold for the House Judiciary Standing
Commi ttee.

9:44:57 AM

QUI NLAN STEINER, Public Defender, Public Defender's Ofice,
stated that the consequence of giving the Ofice of the
Onbudsman the authority to investigate the ABA would be to
underm ne the review of agency attorneys' conduct with respect
to a client's conplaint. He said currently a client can
conplain to the public defender about a problem with his/her
attorney's conduct, and the public defender can evaluate the
conplaint with access to all the attorney-client confidences
that are necessary to review the conplaint. Alternatively, the
client can conplain to the ABA. \Wen a client conplains to the
ABA, that entity asks for a response from agency attorneys.
Presently attorneys fully conply by including all attorney-
client confidences, because it is permssible under a rule to do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 6, 2014



so. However, if that information could be released to an entity
outside of the ABA the attorneys would no l|longer be able to
fully respond, which would have the effect of undermning the
review of the client's conplaint by narrowi ng his/her option for
issuing a conplaint to only the public defender. M. Steiner
said having a full candid review benefits the crimnal justice
system as a whole, and certainly benefits the client. He
opined, "I think that's worth considering when evaluating how
this is executed."

9:47: 04 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony on HB 127.
9:47:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expressed hope that the House Judiciary
Standing Committee would consider a letter, dated 2/24/14, from
M. Van Goor, regarding enforcenent action initiated by the
Ofice of the Onbudsman, because she offered her understanding
that the conmttee had learned that the Ofice of the Onbudsman
does not have enforcenent action. She nmentioned having | ooked
at the Alaska Rule of Professional Conduct, and said she had
noted "some rules that perhaps would apply.” She said it
addressed situations in which there may be allegations regarding
attorney and where disclosure could be allowed if required by
I aw. She indicated that she would like conmittee discussion
regardi ng those issues found in the Al aska Rule of Professiona

Conduct .

9:49: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he wuld comit to a thorough
di scussion of all issues that conme up during the House Judiciary
Standing Committee's upcomng review of HB 127. He enphasi zed
that his interest in the proposed legislation is on behalf of
t he | egi sl ature.

9:50: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS stated his preference that the
House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee review HB 127 wthout
Sections 3-5.

CHAI R LYNN rem nded Representative Kreiss-Tonkins he would have

the chance to indicate his view of HB 127, Version T, when
signing the bill report.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS said he would rather see the
change made before a notion to nove the proposed bill out of
comittee.

9:51: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  KREI SS- TOWI NS  noved to adopt Concept ual
Amendnent 2, to renove the |anguage that was added in Sections
3- 5.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ect ed.
9:51: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked for clarification t hat
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins w shed to delete Sections 3-5
entirely.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS responded, "That's it."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS reiterated that she did not think the
| anguage in Sections 3-5 was necessary; therefore, she stated
her support of Conceptual Anendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he thinks [the |anguage in Sections
3-5] "is areal elegant fix to a couple problens."

9:52:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES indicated that she does not support
[ Sections 3-5] as currently witten, and said she has not cone
to the point where she is ready to make a policy call. She
asked Representative Keller if this issue would be taken up in
the House Judiciary Standing Commttee if Conceptual Anendnent 2
was adopt in this commttee, because she ventured that there may
be sone value in continuing the discussion on what the three
sections are addressing.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered yes. He said he thinks it 1is
"too broad of a brush" to take all that |anguage out, while
leaving it in would ensure a robust discussion. He added t hat
he does not anticipate that the proposed |egislation would nove
out of the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee as witten.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES clarified that she wanted to know if the
di scussion would be brought back to the table in the next

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 6, 2014



coommittee of referral if the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee adopted Conceptual Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said the discussion would happen either
way, but he stated his preference that the |anguage remain in
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she would vote against Conceptual
Amendnent 2, not because she supports the |anguage in Sections
3-5 entirely, but rather in the interest of continuing the
di scussion in the next commttee of referral. For exanple, she
said she does not believe that the chair of the Administrative
Regul ati on Revi ew shoul d have sol e di scretion.

9:55: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS said she thinks that the House State
Affairs Standing Comrittee has held a robust discussion of
[Sections 3-5] and it is tine to take that |anguage out and
start over again.

9:56: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS said if the conmmttee is all in
agreenent that the bill |anguage should be cleaned up, it would
be logical to start with "less" and have the burden to prove
every change to the bill, rather than having that |anguage in
the bill and then "work to subtract."” He said it does not make
sense to pass a bill out of conmittee with troubl esome |anguage
still in it. He said he feels that adopting Conceptual

Amendnent 2 would be a nore conservative, cautious, and
del i berate approach to produce the best possible [Ilegislation]
to pass on to the next conmttee of referral.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nai nt ai ned hi s objection.

9:57:12 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Kreiss-Tonki ns and
Gattis vot ed in favor of Concept ual Anmendment 2.
Representatives Hughes, Keller and Lynn voted against it.
Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 2 failed by a vote of 2-3.

9:57: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 127, Version 28-
LS0088\T, Gardner, 3/5/14, as anended, out of commttee wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 6, 2014



i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection CSHB 127(STA) noved out of the House
State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

9:58:43 AM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:59
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 6, 2014



